


- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

September 26, 2017 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Sep 26 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sept 26 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 26 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Oct 10 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Daly Elementary, 1735 Strong Avenue 

Oct 10 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Daly Elementary, 1735 Strong Avenue 
Oct 24 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Oct 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 
******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. MINUTES  -   September 12, 2017 – Public Work Session 
September 12, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
September 19, 2017 – Public Work Session 
 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2017 – August 31, 2017 
 

 2018 Budget, Capital Projects and Bus Replacement Plans – The Business 
Office presents the 2018 Budget, Budget Forms, the Capital Projects Fund 
(CPF) Plan and the School Bus Replacement Plan. 

 
 Permission to Advertise – Board approval is sought to advertise the required 

documents related to the 2018 Budget, CPF and Bus Replacement Plans and 

to hold a Public Hearing on October 10, 2017. 
 

 Architect/Design Selection – The Business Office requests authorization to 
enter into an agreement for architectural/design services. 
 

 Monthly Insurance Update 
 



BOARD AGENDA September 26, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Common School Fund Loan – The Business Office recommends approval to 
apply for an advance from the Indiana Department of Education Common 

School Fund Loan. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3121ACS – The administration presents proposed revisions to 

Board Policy 3121ACS - Personal Background Checks and Mandatory 
Reporting of Convictions and Arrests, as initially presented at the Board’s 
September 12th regular meeting. 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Administrative Regulation IKE – The administration presents proposed 

revisions to Administrative Regulation IKE – Retention of Students in Grades 
K – 8, for initial consideration. 
 

 Agreement Between Elkhart Community Schools and ETHOS, Inc. 
 

 Alternative Residential Services Agreements – The administration 
recommends Board approval of three (3) alternative residential service 

agreements for Elkhart Community Schools’ students. 
 

 Administrative Conflict of Interest – Elkhart Community School’s 

administrator discloses a potential conflict of interest statement. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 

grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

September 12, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Kevin Scott 
 Tony Gianesi Beth Sokolowski 
 Rob Haworth Tessa Sutton 
 Tracey Whitmyer Doug Thorne 
 Maggie Lozano Dee Wappes 

 Dawn McGrath Cheryl Waggoner 

   
 

Roll Call 

The Board heard the following presentations: Beth Sokolowski, art teacher at 
Central, and Tessa Sutton, Supervisor of Connective Leadership & Inclusion, 
explained the Art Café, a potential new program; Dee Wappes, Director of 
Assessment and Data, provided an overview of the NWEA first assessment 
window; and Tracey Kizyma-Whitmyer, Principal at Beck Lab School, discussed 
Beck’s school improvement plan and the changes that have taken place.   
 
The Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:45 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

September 12, 2017 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

approximately 7:10 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 

 Douglas K. Weaver Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Board Secretary Doug Weaver recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
August 22, 2017 – Public Work Session  
August 22, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$3,228,614.96 as shown on the September 12, 2017, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1718-22) 
 

Payment of 
Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): a 2005 Chrysler 
PT Cruiser from Ada and John Hochstelter to the Elkhart Area Career 
Center (EACC) for use in the automotive classes; $500 each from Frank 

and Tonja Lucchese and the Osolo Township Trustees to Osolo 
Elemtanry to help with costs of the Title I Meeting and Annual Back to 
School Picnic; $100.45 from Merle and Sue Yoder to Food Services to 

pay negative account balances at Cleveland and $180.00 from an 
anonymous donor to pay negative account balances at Mary Daly; 
$100.00 from ADEC to Riverview’s music program to purchase 

equipment; $50 Walmart gift cards to 23 Riverview teachers from Dr. 
and Mrs. Fairchild through their work with Trinity United Methodist 
Church – Small Groups; $500 from Jonathan and Mollie Krider to 

Memorial’s volleyball program; and Student Services received the 
following donations to be distributed by school social workers: over 700 

backpacks with supplies from WNDU; 150 filled backpacks from Natasha 
Fisel and her family; and several boxes of school supplies and backpacks 
from Truck Center of Elkhart. 

Gift Acceptance 



2 
 

President Susan Daiber opened the 1028 Public Hearing  
 

Jeff Qualkinbush, bond attorney from Barnes & Thornburg, reviewed the 
2017 Food Commissary Renovation Project, the future Educational 
Services Center project, noting each bond will not exceed Two Million 

Dollars ($2,000,000), and the amendment to lease with the Elkhart 
Community School Building Corporation. 
 

President Susan Daiber opened the floor for public comment, with no 
comments from the audience members, President Daiber declared the 
hearing closed. 

 

1028 Hearing 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Resolution regarding 
Execution of the Amendment to Lease for the 2017 Food Commissary 

Renovation Project and matters related thereto.  (Codified File 1718-23) 
 

Resolution 
Amendment to 

Lease 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted an Additional Appropriation 

Resolution regarding the 2017 Food Commissary Renovation project. 
(Codified File 1718-24) 

Additional 

Appropriations 
- Commissary 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted an Additional Appropriation 

Resolution regarding the 2018 Educational Services Center Renovation 
project.  (Codified File 1718-25) 

Additional 

Appropriations 
– ESC  

By unanimous action, the Board approved revisions to textbook rental 

fees for the 2017-2018 school year.  (Codified File 1718-26) 
 

Textbook 

Rental Fees 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1718-27) 
 

Fundraisers 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions of Board 

Policy 3210CS – Staff Ethics, as initially presented at the Board’s August 
22nd regular meeting. 
  

Board Policy 

3210CS 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed new Board Policy 
3220.01 - Teacher Appreciation Grants, as initially presented at the 
Board’s August 22nd regular meeting. 

 

Board Policy 
3220.01 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 
Policy 5111 - Determination of Legal Settlement, as initially presented at 

the Board’s August 22nd regular meeting.  The Board requested 
development of an Administrative Regulation requiring an annual report 
by classification and location of employees qualifying under the revised 

policy. 
 

Board Policy 
5111 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 3121ACS –

Personal Background Checks and Mandatory Reporting of Convictions and 
Arrests, for initial consideration. 
 

Board Policy 

3121ACS 
 



3 
 

Dee Wappes, director of assessment & data, presented the 2017 ISTEP+ 
results.  Mrs. Wappes reported since the 2014-15 adoption of new 

English/Language Arts and Mathematic standards by Indiana, the overall 
results in both areas are in a decline statewide.  Elkhart Community 
Schools had a 13% increase in English/Language Arts 2017 passing 

rates from grade 5 to 6, while statewide there was only a 5% increase.  
ECS had a 9% increase in Math 2017 passing rates from grade 3 to 4, 
while statewide there was only a 4% increase; ECS is committed to 

analyzing NWEA growth data to determine the academic needs of all 
students and will focus on stronger Tier 1 instruction using both NWEA 
and ISTEP+.  Mrs. Wappes also noted the Indiana Department of 

Education (IDOE) is currently changing the ISTEP+ again and ILEARN 
will be the third new summative assessment in Indiana over the past 
nine years.  ILEARN is scheduled for implementation in 2018-19.  The 

Board discussed various issues regarding ISTEP+ and NWEA testing, and 
ECS’s commitment to continued growth and expectations. 
 

ISTEP Report 
 

Tara White, director of literacy, presented the Fall 2017 reading 
initiative – Tackle a Good Book.  Initiatives include a reading challenge 

for all schools; a reading interest survey for all staff; badges for staff; 
testimonials and Andrew Luck Book Club participation; and prizes and 
recognition for participants.  The Board was invited to participate in the 

activities. 
 

Literacy Report 
 

The Board heard of potential conflict of interest for administrator, Bill 
Kovach. (Codified File 1718-28) 
 

Conflict of 
Interest 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of the 
following four (4) WNDU One School at a Time Grants of $1,000 each: 
Bristol physical education department for skate rental; Elkhart Memorial 

marching band for food; Eastwood for art supplies; and Cleveland for 
books. (Codified File 1718-29) 
 

Grant 
Approvals 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following overnight trip 
requests:  Elkhart Memorial’s volleyball team to travel to Muncie, IN on 

September 22 – 23 to attend a varsity volleyball invitational at Muncie 
Central High School; Elkhart Memorial’s volleyball team to travel to 
Carmel, IN on October 6 – 7 to attend a varsity volleyball invitational at 

Carmel High School; and Pinewood’s sixth graders to travel to 
Cassopolis, MI on October 24 – 26 for an environmental outdoor 
experience at Camp Friedenswald. 
 

Overnight Trips 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the September 12, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1718-

30) 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 

Report 

Agreements regarding unpaid time for three (3) certified staff 
members. (Codified Files 1718-31) 

Consent 
Agreements 



4 
 

Employment of the following six (6) certified staff members for 
the 2017-2018 school year: 

Austin Conner - science at Memorial 
Elizabeth Fawcett - grade 6 at Pinewood 
Jessica Leatherman - art at Daly 

Sara Nelson - ENL at Riverview (temp) 
Carrie Shank - music at Pinewood 
Cristina Wiltse - grade 4 at Beardsley 

 

Certified 
Employment 

Resignation of the following four (4) certified staff members 
effective on the dates indicated: 

Melissa Butner - music at Beck, 5/26/17 
Anne Ledebur - grade 4 at Beardsley, 8/17/17 
Kathleen Malas - special education at Pierre Moran, 8/18/17 

Diego Mendoza - intervention at Pierre Moran, 9/7/17 
 

Certified 
Resignations 

 

Maternity leave for the following three (3) certified staff members  

for dates indicated: 
Kaylie Dvorak - grade 1 at Beardsley, beginning 9/29/17 

and ending 10/13/17 

Kaleigh Estrup - grade 1 at Riverview, beginning 10/9/17 
and ending 6/6/18 

Holly O’Connell - grade 2 at Pinewood, beginning 9/28/17 
and ending 11/9/17 

 

Maternity 

Leave 
 

Rescinded maternity leave for certified staff member, Jessica 
Schibley, science at Central. 

Rescinded 
Maternity 
Leave 

 
Parental leave for certified staff member, Randi Weidman, special 
education at Woodland, beginning 8/28/17 and ending 6/6/18. 
 

Parental Leave 
 

Employment of the following four (4) classified who have 

successfully completed their probationary period on dates 
indicated: 

Barbara Anguiano - senior reporter and assignment editor at 

WVPE, 8/31/17 
Elizabeth Gilvin - food service at Memorial, 9/5/17 
Edward Goins - bus driver at Transportation, 8/24/17 

Rosemary Wilson - custodian at Roosevelt, 9/5/17 
 

Classified 

Employment 
 

Resignation of the following six (6) classified employees effective on 
the dates indicated: 

Kathy Aistrop - food service at Hawthorne, 9/27/17 

Tori Bubac - food service at Feeser, 8/16/17 
Bobbie Denney - food service at Monger, 9/4/17 
Matthew Hensley - tech network engineer at Tech Services, 

9/29/17 
Connie Jones - food service at Beardsley, 9/15/17 
Diana Liptak - misc.Title I/III Parent Support at Daly, 6/1/16 

Classified 
Resignation 
 



5 
 

Termination of the following classified employees in accordance with 
Board Policy 3139.01S. 

Marissa Meyer, paraprofessional at Riverview 
Obra Vavrek, custodian at Riverview 
 

Classified 
Terminations 

 

The Board heard from audience member, Diana Liptak, speak in regards 
to procedures used in restructuring parent support staff. 
 

From the 
Audience  
 

The Board heard from audience member, Dwight Fish, 4th District City 
Councilman, report the status of the school crossing guard funding and 
the need for a joint meeting to discuss the funding and public safety of 

the community.  The Board responded such a meeting would be 
welcomed. 
 

 

Superintendent Haworth commented on Kristin Baker, speech and 
theater teacher at Central, being named one of the top 10 teachers in 
the State of Indiana and the Teacher of the Year competition. 

 

From the 
Superintendent 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a fundraiser presented by Julie 
Tyrakowski, for Memorial that was not on the report presented to the 

Board.  The fundraiser is an upcoming dodge ball competition. 
 

Fundraiser 

The Board discussed possible dates for a Board retreat.  The retreat will 
be held on Tuesday, October 17th with the time to be determined. 
 

From the Board 

  



6 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:20 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

September 19, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
 Douglas K. Weaver  
   
Absent:  Rodney Dale 
  Glenn Duncan 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Cynthia Bonner Dawn McGrath 
 Howard Edwards Kevin Scott 

 
 Tony Gianesi Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth Cheryl Waggoner 
   

   

   
 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented with current student counts and a staffing report.  The 
Board also heard School Improvement Plans for Pierre Moran Middle School from 
Principal Cynthia Bonner, and Roosevelt STEAM Academy from Principal Howard 
Edwards.  Tony Gianesi, Chief Operating Officer, discussed the upcoming 
architectural firm selection process. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:00 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  September 16, 2017 

 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

   

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the girls/boys Cross 

Country team.  This donation will go towards the purchase of equipment and other miscellaneous costs 

associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

The Sarah Crane Foundation 

54921 David Dr. 

Elkhart, IN 46514 





PETTY CASH $ 500.00                     

GENERAL ACCOUNTS:                      

     Lake City Bank 16,925,020.30          

     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                              -                           

     Teachers Credit Union                                                           2,913,836.87            

     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00               

SCHOOL LUNCH ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank                                                                       (1,343,345.98)          

     Lake City Bank - Prepaid Lunch                                                                       81,244.45                

     Change Fund            2,010.00                  

TEXTBOOK RENTAL ACCOUNTS:

     Chase Bank 1,864,673.04            

PAYROLL ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                        -                           

     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                                  63,367.35                

     Teachers Credit Union-Payroll Account -                           

     Teachers Credit Union - Flex Account                                 -                           

     

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                           

                                                                                                                            

20,914,726.0320,914,726.0320,914,726.0320,914,726.03$         $         $         $             

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL

August 2017

2



 
INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 
 
 
To:   Board of School Trustees 
  Dr. Haworth 
   
From: Kevin Scott 

 
Date:  September 26, 2017  

 

Subject: 2018 Budget   

At our September 26th Board meeting I will be presenting a brief overview of the proposed 2018 Budget, 
the proposed plan for the Capital Projects Fund and the proposed plan for the Bus Replacement Fund. 
 

Indiana local taxing units (including school corporations) submit proposed budgets to the Indiana 

Department of Local Government Finance through the Gateway on‐line reporting system.  Materials 

included for your review include documents generated directly from the Gateway system as well as the 

budget hearing notices for the CPF and Bus Replacement plans. 

 

Following the public meeting budget presentation on September 26th, our budget timeline also includes 

the required public hearing on the budget on October 10th, and budget adoption on October 24th. 

 

During the September 26th Board meeting I will request authorization from the Board to provide notice of 

the October 10th public hearing to taxpayers.  The hearing provides taxpayers the opportunity to comment 

on the proposed budget (Budget Form 3), the proposed Capital Projects plan and the Bus Replacement 

plan.  The Budget Form 3 notice will appear on the Gateway system on September 29th.  Please note that 

the CPF and Bus Replacement notices included in your Board materials must still be published in local 

newspapers and will appear on September 29th as well. 

 

Please contact me at 262‐5553 if you have any questions concerning the budget materials you received. 

 

 

 

 

 























































  

About us:  Cripe Design is a full service Architectural Design firm offering services from concept thru 
construction. Our focus is on serving the client and providing the best possible experience thru 
prompt, creative, and budgetary conscious solutions to your specific architectural needs. Daniel 
Cripe, principal Architect and Owner of Cripe Design, is involved in all phases of each and every 
project and is committed to maintaining the highest standards of service and client satisfaction. 
With nearly forty years of knowledge and experience in a variety of building types. We approach 
each project as a singular opportunity to conduct a thorough and analytical procedure in 
determining your needs, your vision, and all within your budgetary requirements. We will 
customize and select our team of Engineers and Consultants to fit your project’s specific needs. 
We provide a comprehensive approach to the design process and can provide services thru all the 
various phases of your project including; Initial Planning Studies, Inventory and Programming 
Analysis, Schematic Design, Design Development, Construction Documents, Bidding Negotiations, 
Construction Administration, and Post Construction reviews. We utilize a variety of 
communication tools to assist you with visualizing the design process including hand sketches, 
color renderings, and the latest computer software technology for drawing and 3D modeling.  

 
Markets: Cripe Design has developed extensive experience in a variety of building types including, historic 

preservation, education, financial institutions, government, religious, public libraries, sports and 
recreation, college facilities, performing arts, industrial, retail, housing and private residences.   

 
Ownership:                          Daniel Cripe, Principal Owner, Cripe Design, LLC – 2011 – Present 

   

Projects:  
 
High School Projects: 
Elkhart Memorial High School - New Football Stadium: Elkhart, Indiana 
Northside Gymnasium - Re-roof and deck replacement: Elkhart, Indiana 
Jimtown High School - Classroom addition and renovation: Elkhart, Indiana  
Jimtown High School - Gymnasium Addition: Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Middle School Projects: 
Northside Middle School - Classroom and Restroom Remodeling: Elkhart, Indiana 
Jimtown Junior High School - Classroom additions and renovations: Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Elementary School Projects: 
Beardsley Elementary School / Elkhart Boys & Girls Club - Gymnasium add. & adaptive reuse of existing gym: Elkhart, Indiana 
Mary Beck Elementary School - Classroom additions and renovations: Elkhart, Indiana 
Mary Daly Elementary School - Classroom additions and renovations: Elkhart, Indiana 
Monger Elementary School - Classroom additions and renovations: Elkhart, Indiana 
Rice Elementary School - Feasibility Study: Elkhart, Indiana 
Elementary School Playground Prototype: Elkhart, Indiana 
New Playground Construction - New playgrounds for Roosevelt, Eastwood, & Beardsley Schools: Elkhart, Indiana 
Jimtown Elementary School - Classroom addition: Elkhart, Indiana 
Harley Holben Elementary School - New gymnasium and classroom add. & renovations: Jimtown, Indiana 

  

 

430 Baldwin Street, Suite 10    Elkhart IN 46514   P: (574) 226-0249        www.cripedesign.com   



  

About us:   Founded by company president Kenneth K. Jones, PLS, in 1988 as a land surveying and civil engineering 
company, the firm has grown to provide a variety of professional design and planning resources in multiple 
states. Our commitment to excellent client service enabled us to expand, opening a second office in South 
Bend, Indiana in 2003 and a third office in Fort Wayne, Indiana in 2015. In 2012, after a 25-year history of 
successful projects and relationships, we rebranded to better reflect our heritage and ownership. Now 
known as Jones Petrie Rafinski (formerly Wightman Petrie) and headquartered in Indiana, our company’s 
approach to complete and custom service allows us to be cost effective anywhere our services are needed. 

Markets:            Engineering, Planning, Surveying, GIS, Landscape Architecture, Procurement,  

                 Environmental, Architecture   

 
Projects:   JPR has a long history of successful projects with the school corporation where we have provided a wide variety of 

engineering services. These projects include services directly to the School Corporation and services as a sub-consultant to 
architectural firms engaged with the schools.  Following is a list of completed projects.   

 

Mary Feeser School Survey, Inspection Services 

Eastwood Elementary Survey, Engineering, Geotechnical Services 

Memorial High School Survey Services 

Mary Beck Elementary Survey, Environmental, Geotechnical Services 

Cleveland Elementary School Survey, Engineering Services 

ECSC Building Services Site Survey, Environmental Services 

Bristol Elementary Survey, Engineering, Geotechnical Services 

Monger Elementary Survey Services 

Elkhart Career Center Survey Services 

Pierre Moran Elementary Survey Services 

Roosevelt School Survey Services 

Pinewood Elementary Survey, Engineering Services 

Riverview Elementary Survey Services 

Beardsley Elementary Survey Services 

East Side Elementary Survey, Engineering Services 

West Side Elementary Survey Services 

Osolo Elementary Survey, Engineering Services 

Woodland Elementary Survey Services 

   

 

Suite 200, 200 Nibco Pkwy.              Elkhart, IN 46516                 Phone: (574) 293-7762                www.jpr1source.com 



 

 

 

Firm Profile – Primary Engineering, Inc.  

Fort Wayne   Indianapolis 
260-424-0444   317-324-1221 

 

History: Primary Engineering was formed in the 2004 with a goal to provide high quality mechanical and electrical 
engineering services with a focus on energy efficient, robust design.  The goal of our firm is to provide 
services that allow a client to make informed design decisions and maximize their resources.  Project 
budget, life cycle cost, robustness of design, and schedule are key aspects of every project and are evaluated 
with the design of the systems for the facility.  Engineering design services that we provide: 
 HVAC systems 
 Domestic plumbing systems 
 Electrical power distribution 
 Lighting design 
 Data cabling and fiber design 
 Medical gas piping systems 
 Backup power and UPS systems 
 IP convergence video security and door access control 

 
Ownership: Brian Johnson, President and Lead Electrical Engineer 
 Michael Lubbehusen, Vice President and Lead Mechanical Engineer 
 
Markets: K-12 Education, Higher Education, Healthcare, Senior Living, Commercial Office and Retail, Industrial and 

Process. 
 We serve clients throughout the Mid-West United States as well as clients in over 15 states and on 6 

different continents. 
 
Elkhart Schools: Elkhart Community Schools has over 25 buildings in their district and Primary Engineering has worked in 

nearly every single facility for over since 2007 to improve the physical plant operations.  Many of these 
projects have included new boiler heating plants and chiller plants.   

 
 We have worked closely with ECS to assist in developing campus standards and correcting systems that 

have not functioned well in the past.  Our approach is to listen to the client’s needs, develop several 
solutions, and work with the client to determine which solution best fits their needs and long term goals.  
It is our goal to develop a team approach where we are part of their facilities team and they are a part of 
our design team for a successful project. 

 
Pierre Moran Boiler Plant (2008) 
Osolo Chiller Plant (2008) 
Eastwood Chiller Plant (2008) 
West Side Boiler Plant (2008) 
Central HS Café Renovation (2009) 
HD Video Projection Upgrades (2009) 
Beardsley Boiler and Chiller Plant (2009) 
Beardsley Gym Lighting (2009) 
Archive drawings scanning (2010) 
Riverview Boiler Plant (2011) 
Northside MS Serving Line Renovation (2011) 
New Smart Board/Projectors in all schools (2011) 
Auto Trades Building Expansion (2012) 

Emergency Responder Plans (2012) 
Wellness Center (2012) 
New Food Commissary Building (2013) 
Monger Elem Boiler and Chiller plant (2013) 
Northside MS Chiller (2013) 
Mary Feeser Chiller (2013) 
Pinewood ES Chiller (2013) 
Central HS Chiller Plant Replacement (2014) 
Westside MS Office Addition (2015) 
Beardsley ES Office Addition (2015) 
Pinewood ES Office Addition (2015) 
Commissary Addition (2017) 

 
 
 



 

Elkhart Community Schools – One High School Project  

Proposed Project Design Team 

Architecture:    Cripe Design LLC (Lead Architect) 

Interior Design   Elkhart, IN 

    

 

    Jones Petrie Rafinski 

    South Bend, IN  

 

    TMP Architecture (Educational Specialist/Interior Design) 

    Portage, MI 

 

 

 

Structural:   Frost Engineering and Consulting 

    Mishawaka, IN 

 

 

 

Mechanical:   Primary Engineering Inc. 

Electrical   Fort Wayne, IN 

Plumbing 

 

 

 

Civil and Landscape:   Jones Petrie Rafinski 

    South Bend, IN 

 

 

 

 

430 Baldwin Street, Suite 10    Elkhart IN 46514   P: (574) 226-0249        www.cripedesign.com   



TMP is a firm of highly qualified professionals in the fields of Architecture and 
Interior Design.  The firm was founded in 1959 with the goal of designing the 
finest buildings for education. TMP’s offices in Portage and Bloomfield Hills, 
Michigan have grown to serve the broad spectrum of needs for institutions across 
the country.

Our team has gained wide recognition for its design of outstanding, award-
winning educational facilities.  During those years, TMP has completed over 
6,000 projects for primary and secondary school clients.  Services provided 
include bond issue studies, campaign assistance, programming, planning, new 
facilities design, interior design, and remodeling design.  TMP’s success in serving 
educational clients can be attributed our team’s sensitivity and understanding of 
the unique requirements and needs of the students, faculty and administrators.

When TMP designs primary and secondary schools, we see it as much more than 
just a “building” that students attend for thirteen years of their life.  Our goal is to 
elevate the school to an environment that fosters education.  TMP’s in-house 
philosophy of “do not let the architecture get in the way of education but let it 
support and reinforce educational philosophies” certainly says it all.  A school 
must be flexible, capable of reacting to any curricular and extra curricular activity 
with minimal disruption.  A school environment must be designed with the users 
in mind - students and teachers.  They are the lifeblood that gives the school its 
vitality and character.  The architecture of the school must support this lifeblood 
and make people feel good about being there.  After all, the child’s school years 
are an important stepping stone in life - those years should be an enjoyable and 
memorable experience and the architecture of the school can tremendously 
affect that effort.

Elkhart Community Schools, IN 
Memorial & Central HS Master Plans

Elkhart, IN 
New Health, Fitness & Aquatic Center

Allegan Public Schools, MI 
Auditorium and Pool Addition to HS 
2012 & 2000 Bond Issue Programs

Battle Creek Public Schools, MI  
Central High School Addition/Remodeling 
Central Fieldhouse Addition/Remodeling 
Valley View Elementary Addition/Remod. 
C. W. Post Athletic Fields Addition/Remod. 
LaMora Park Elementary Addition 
Dudley Elementary Remodeling 
Ann J. Kellogg Elementary Remodeling 
Middle School Visioning 
Alternative Energy Grant Support 
Multi-Purpose Enrichment Center Design 
District-Wide Bond Planning 
Storm Water Assessment 
Feasibility Study 

Constantine Public Schools, MI 
New High School 
High School conversion to Middle School 
Eastside Elementary School Add./Remod. 
Riverside Elementary School Add./Remod. 
2002 Bond Issue Program 

Evanston/Skokie School Dist. 65, IL 
Lincoln Elementary School Addition/Remodel 
Haven Middle School Addition/Remodel 
Nichols Middle School Addition/Remodel 
Lincolnwood ES Addition/Remodel

Fennville Public Schools, MI 
Facilities Analysis & Bond Issue Study 
New Elementary School 
Middle School Remodeling 
High School Remodeling 
Athletic Facilities 
Alternative Ed & Administration 
Community Athletic Building

Grand Rapids Public Schools, MI 
New SW Community Campus High School 

Muskegon Heights Schools, MI 
New High School 

Niles Community Schools, MI 
2015 Bond Program 
Facilities Assessment 
Niles New Tech High

Evergreen Local Schools, OH 
Bond Study for New High School 
New High School

Portage Public Schools, MI 
Central High School Addition/Remodeling 
Northern High School Addition/Remodeling 
New Lake Center Elementary School 
New 12th Street Elementary School 
Angling Road Elementary Addition/Remod. 
New Moorsbridge Elementary School 
Waylee Elementary Addition/Remodeling 
Woodland Elementary Addition/Remodeling 
Community Education Center Remodeling 
Amberly Elementary School Remodeling 
Middle School Gymnasium Upgrades 
Administration Building Upgrades 
Central Elementary Addition/Remodeling 
Haverhill Elementary Addition/Remodeling 
Central Middle School Addition/Remodeling 
North Middle School Addition/Remodeling 
West Middle School Addition/Remodeling 
McCamley Fieldhouse Addition/Remodeling 
New Bus Garage and Maintenance Facility 
New Playgrounds at Elementary Schools 
2007 Bond Issue Study 
1991 & 1993 Bond Issue Programs 

Spring Lake Public Schools, MI 
Athletics Projects 
Holmes & Jeffers ES Addition/Remodel 
Intermediate/Middle School Remodel 
2014 Bond Issue Program

SELECT DESIGN EXPERIENCE





 
INTERNAL   MEMO 

To: Kevin   Scott,   Rob   Haworth 

Board   of   School   Trustees 

From: Gary   Sawtelle,   Director   of   Technology   Services 

Date: 9-26-2017 

 

 

Common   School   Fund   Loan 

 
The   Indiana   Department   of   Educa�on   makes   available   low   interest   loans   for   technology   projects   via   the 
Common   School   Fund.      Based   upon   current   enrollment,   ECS   currently   qualifies   for   a   loan   of   $1,254,000. 
The   Business   Office   seeks   Board   approval   to   take   advantage   of   these   below-market   interest   rates   to 
con�nue   to   expand   our   device   total   with   an   addi�onal   purchase   of   iPads   furthering   our   goal   to   reach   1:1. 
These   funds   will   also   be   used   for   projects   crucial   to   the   success   of   our   Strategic   Plan.      This   is   equipment   that 
the   district   would   otherwise   purchase   from   the   Capital   Projects   Fund,   thus   providing   some   relief   for   that 
fund. 

The   State   Board   of   Educa�on   has   designated   several   millions   of   dollars   for   technology   loans.   Completed 
pe��ons   are   due   to   the   IDOE   Office   of   School   Finance   in   Indianapolis   by   October   6,   2017.      A   copy   of   the 
pe��on   form   is   a�ached. 
 

 

 
J.C.   Rice   Educational   Services   Center 

2720   California   Road   •   Elkhart,   IN   46514 



1 
 

EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM 
Application Period September 13, 2017, through October 6, 2017 

PUBLIC SCHOOL CORPORATIONS ONLY 
                                                                                                   Mail to: CommonSchoolFund@doe.in.gov 
 

 
PETITION TO THE INDIANA STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR AN ADVANCE FROM THE COMMON SCHOOL FUND 
 
Date of Petition________________________________  

 
Corporation #                     Corporation Name: _____________________________________________________ 
Street Address: _________________________________ City____________________Zip Code______________  
Contact Name: _____________________________________________________ Phone # __________________ 
Contact email: _______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Amount requested from the Common School Fund (technology)            $____________________ 
 
Repayment period (five years or less) requested for Common School Fund advancement     
 
1. In order to apply for an advance, under the provisions of IC 20-20-13-7, each school corporation must 

have an approved three-year technology plan that includes at least the following information: 
a. A description of the school corporation’s intent to integrate technology into the school corporation’s 
    curriculum. 

 b. A plan for providing in-service training. 
 c. A schedule for maintaining and replacing educational technology equipment. 

d. A description of the criteria used to select the appropriate educational technology equipment for the 
     appropriate use. 

 e. Other information requested by the department after consulting with the budget agency. 
 

Does the corporation meet this requirement?                 Yes                 No 
 
2. Has the applicant completed all local processes required for this project? _____ Yes ______ No 
 
3. Please supply the information requested in the space below (Note:  In computing the advancement base, the 

most recent (September 2017) Grade K-12 ADM figure should be used.)  
 
             _____________   multiplied by $100 = $___________________ 
  Grade K12          Advancement Base      
      ADM                                     (Maximum allowed per Board policy)          

         

4.  Project Cost Breakdown 
a. Technology      $_______________ 
b. Other project cost (please specify)   $_______________ 
c. Other project cost (please specify)    $_______________ 
d. Total project cost (sum lines a through c)  $_______________ 

  
       Sources of funds used to finance the project  

e. Common School Technology Loan   $_______________  
f. Other _________________________   $_______________  
g. Total sources of funds (sum line e plus line f)  $_______________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:CommonSchoolFund@doe.in.gov
2305

Elkhart Community Schools

2720 California Road

Elkhart

46514

Gary Sawtelle

574-262-5560

gsawtelle@elkhart.k12.in.us

$1,254,000

4

X

X

12,540

1,254,000.00

$1,254,000

$1,254,000

$1,254,000

$1,254,000

October 2, 2017



2 
 

Per statute, “Educational technology program means for the purchase, lease or financing of education technology 
equipment; operation of the educational technology equipment; or training of teachers in the use of educational 
technology equipment.” 
NOTES:  

- Cost breakdown should represent a complete project.  Department budgets will not be accepted as support.    
- Only professional development costs that are directly related to the training of teachers in the use of the 

educational technology will be considered.  Direct costs include specific course offerings or contractual 
training services provided onsite.      

- Technology considered administrative in nature may not be considered for a Common School Loan (i.e. 
phone systems, computers/laptops for support staff, etc.) 

 
5. Technology project description  
 
 
 
 
 
6.   Technology cost breakdown by site-include as attachment if necessary: (if purchasing equipment or services, 
include the number of items and estimated cost by item). If a facility will not benefit from the technology project, it is 
not necessary to list it. 
 

Building Item Description Cost per Unit # of Units Total Cost 
example John Smith Elementary iPad mini $500 100 $50,000 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
 
7. Technology project integration points (How will this loan support the current technology plan and strategic vision 
 for the school district in terms of academic achievement?) 
 
 
 
 
8. If the school corporation has received a Common School Loan for Technology in the last three years, how much 
was received   and how were the funds used? $__________________  
 
 
 
 
9. How will the impact of this loan be measured to ensure successful implementation of technology in the school 
 district? 
 
 
 
 
10.   If the school has received a School Technology Advancement Account (STAA) loan in the last three years, how     
 much did the school receive and how were the funds used? $________________  

 
 

 
 
 
 

This project will continue the District's expansion of mobile devices to further prepare for a 1:1 program for instruction at all grades.   By the fall of 2018, we will have purchased and deployed enough devices to move our high schools to full 1:1.

SEE ATTACHED SHEET

Access to technology is critical to the advancement of academic achievement, These devices will provide additional access to mobile technology for teachers and students expanding the number of teachers prepared and number of students equipped for a 1:1 program.

$3,796,319

The district received a Common School Loan for technology in 2016 for $2,540,250. These funds were used to augment our network infrastructure in preparation for expanded mobile computing as well as for the first round of mobile devices for teachers and students.

In 2017, the district received $1,256,069 which was used to purchase more student and teacher devices.

The use of technology and its impact on instructional practice and student performance is evaluated by principals and by district-level administrators in the areas of Instruction and Learning, Communications and Data, and Technology. Our ongoing and continuous measurement of the success of the project will allow us to adapt to changing circumstances and make changes to the plan as conditions warrant.

$1,027,848

The school district received an STAA loans of $364,000, $362,940 and #300,908 in 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively. These funds were used to purchase computers, software and classroom projection systems for student use in our schools These purchases provide an enhanced instruction space and allow for increased access to local and state online instructional resources and assessments.



3 
 

11. If the school has received Education Technology funds in the last three years, how much was received and how 
 were the funds used? $___________________  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 A signed copy of the application must be received for consideration. 
 

         Certification 
 
 
                                                                         ________________________________ 
Superintendent, School Corporation   President, School Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________                                                                        
Secretary, School Board 
 
 
 

STATE OF INDIANA   ) 
     ) 
                                              COUNTY ) 
 
Subscribed and sworn before me this                          day of                                ,                . 
                                                                                
       ______________________________________ 
 
       Printed Name___________________________  
       
                                                                                                             
My Commission expires: _________________________, _____.                   
 
County of Residence:       ___________________  









policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 1 of 6 

(as presented during the 9/12/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 

PERSONAL BACKGROUND CHECKS AND MANDATORY  
REPORTING OF CONVICTIONS AND ARRESTS 

 
 
Persons Subject to This Policy 
 
This policy applies to all individuals who: 
 
 A. apply for employment with: 
   
 1. the Elkhart Community Schools; or 
   
 2. an entity with which the School Corporation contracts for 

services; or 
   
 B. have entered into a contract to provide services to the School 

Corporation; or 
  
 C. are employed by an entity which has entered into a contract to 

provide services to the School Corporation, 
 
if the individuals are likely to have direct, ongoing contact with children within the 
scope of the individuals' employment. 
 
Requirements of Applicants 
 
At the time an individual makes application for employment with the Elkhart 
Community Schools, or enters into a contract to provide services to the School 
Corporation, s/he shall be required to: 
 
 A. give written consent for the Personnel Human Resources 

Department to obtain an expanded national criminal history 
information search (as defined by I.C. 20-26-2-1.5); and 

   
 B. complete and sign a written criminal history questionnaire. 
 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 2 of 6 

(as presented during the 9/12/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
Elkhart Community Schools will conduct an expanded criminal history check which 
meets requirement I.C. 20-26-2-1.5 concerning all applicants for non-certificated 
employment or certificated employment not later than one (1) month after the 
applicant's employment by Elkhart Community Schools.  All applicants are 
responsible for the entire cost associated with obtaining their expanded criminal 
history. 
 
The failure to answer honestly questions contained in the criminal history 
questionnaire shall be grounds for immediate termination of the individual's 
employment. 
 
A verification of the applicant's eligibility to work using the E-verify database 
maintained by the Federal government as required by I.C. 12-32-1 shall be 
conducted on each applicant who is offered a job. 
 
The Superintendent shall establish the necessary procedures for obtaining personal 
background information on each applicant recommended for employment as a 
certified staff member which shall include the following: 
 
 A. an expanded national criminal history check (as defined by 

I.C. 20-26-2-1.5) of the criminal history record system maintained 
by the Federal Bureau of Investigation based on fingerprint 
identification or another method of positive identification 

  
 B. a search of the national sex offender registry maintained by the 

United States Department of Justice 
  
 C. verification of the applicant’s eligibility to work using the E-Verify 

database maintained by the Federal government as required by 
I.C. 12-32-1 

  
 D. an Indiana Bureau of Motor Vehicles driver history if the position 

involves driving 
   
 E. search of U.S. District Court Records from the districts where 

applicants resided 
 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 3 of 6 

(as presented during the 9/12/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
Each applicant shall certify under penalty of perjury his/her eligibility to be 
employed by the Board as a United States citizen or a qualified alien.  The Board 
may deny employment to an applicant who is convicted of an offense for which the 
applicant’s license for the position may be revoked or suspended by State law. 
 
The procedures shall provide that information and records obtained from 
pre-employment inquiries under this policy are confidential and shall not be 
released except as necessary to implement this policy or defend a decision made 
pursuant to this policy. 
 
 
Criminal Convictions Which Constitute Grounds Not to Employ or Contract an 
Individual 
 
If an applicant for employment or an individual contracting to provide services to the 
School Corporation has been convicted of any of the following listed offenses, s/he 
shall not be employed by the Elkhart Community Schools.  Further, no entity which 
contracts to provide services to Elkhart Community Schools shall employ any 
individual in a position likely to have direct, ongoing contact with children or staff 
within the scope of the individual's employment if the individual has been convicted 
on any of the following listed offenses: 
 
 A. Murder (I.C. 35-42-1-1); 
   
 B. Causing suicide (I.C. 35-42-1-2); 
   
 C. Assisting suicide (I.C. 35-42-1-2.5); 
   
 D. Voluntary manslaughter (I.C. 35-42-1-3); 
   
 E. Reckless homicide (I.C. 35-42-1-5); 
   
 F. Battery (I.C. 35-42-2-1) unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the 

date the individual was discharged from probation, imprisonment, 
or parole, whichever is later; 

   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 4 of 6 

(as presented during the 9/12/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
 G. Aggravated battery (I.C. 35-42-2-1.5); 
   
 H. Kidnapping (I.C. 35-42-3-2); 
   
 I. Criminal confinement (I.C. 35-42-3-3); 
   
 J. A sex offense under I.C. 35-42-4; 
   
 K. Carjacking (I.C. 35-42-5-2); 
   
 L. Arson (I.C. 35-43-1-1) unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the 

date the individual was discharged from probation, imprisonment, 
or parole, whichever is later; 

   
 M. Incest (I.C. 35-46-1-3); 
   
 N. Neglect of a dependent as a Class B felony (I.C. 35-46-1-4(b)(2)) 

unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; 

   
 O. Child selling (I.C. 35-46-1-4(b)); 
   
 P. Contributing to the delinquency of a minor (I.C. 35-46-1-8) unless 

ten (10) years have lapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; 

   
 Q. An offense involving a weapon under I.C. 35-47 or I.C. 35-47.5 

unless ten (10) years have elapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; 

   
 R. An offense relating to controlled substances under I.C. 35-48-4 

which is classified as a felony under State law unless ten (10) years 
have elapsed from the date the individual was discharged from 
probation, imprisonment or parole, whichever is later; 

   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 5 of 6 

(as presented during the 9/12/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
 S. An offense relating to material or performance which is harmful to 

minors or obscene under I.C. 35-49-3 unless ten (10) years have 
elapsed from the date the individual was discharged from probation, 
imprisonment, or parole, whichever is later; 

   
 T. An offense relating to operating a motor vehicle while intoxicated 

under I.C. 9-30-5 which is classified as a felony under State law 
unless five (5) years have elapsed from the date the individual was 
discharged from probation, imprisonment, or parole, whichever is 
later; or 

   
 U. An offense that is equivalent to any of the offenses listed in this 

subsection in which the judgment of conviction was entered under 
the law of any other jurisdiction. 

 
Candidates for positions who have been convicted of misdemeanor offenses under 
I.C. 9-30-5 or 35-48-4, and disclosed those convictions the same, may have this 
provision waived following submission to an addictions assessment. 
 
Duty to Report Criminal Convictions During Employment 
 
During the course of his/her employment with the School Corporation, each 
employee shall be required to report his/her arrest or the filing of criminal charges 
against the employee, and conviction of criminal charges to the Superintendent 
within two (2) business days of the occurrence.  The Superintendent shall obtain a 
review of each reported conviction and shall recommend appropriate action to the 
Board considering the risk to members of the school community presented by the 
continued employment of the convicted employee. 
 
The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines to implement this policy. 
 
 
 
I.C. 10-13-3, 20-26-2-1.5 
I.C. 20-26-5-10, 20-26-5-11, 20-28-5-8 
 
 
 
© NEOLA 2012 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3121ACS/page 6 of 6 

(as presented during the 9/12/17 BST meeting) 
September 26, 2017 



IKE 
Proposed Revised 

 
Administrative Regulation 

 
RETENTION OF STUDENTS IN GRADES K - 8 

1. 

2. 

In alignment with the Building Team processes in a given building (Multi 
Tiered System of Support or MTSS), a teacher or parent requests support to 
address a pattern of concerning academic or social/emotional behavior for a 
given student.  

3. 

The building team, with the student’s teacher, reviews existing data, 
including individual performance and class comparisons. 

4. 

Team members or district support personnel observe the student in multiple 
school settings at different times of the day, recording information which 
includes relationships between the student’s performance and 
antecedents/results. 

5. 

Team members identify additional information and data needed to formulate 
an intervention plan, including data from parents when relevant, and 
improve the instruction to meet the individual student’s need. 

a. 

Once this data has been collected, the building team constructs a 
hypothesis for the root cause of the student’s difficulty and designs a plan to 
address this conclusion.  This plan must include 

b. 

specific concern(s); 

c. 

data used to define this concern; 

d. 

statement of the hypothesized root cause; 

e. 

specifics on strategies which will be delivered with fidelity; 

f. 

the mechanism/instrument that will be used to measure progress; 

g. 

the academic or behavioral outcomes which are appropriately 
anticipated; and  

6. 

the adequate amount of time needed to determine the effectiveness 
of the intervention. 

7. 

The teacher and other service staff fulfill the plan as articulated by the 
building team, reporting progress and making adjustments as needed. 

8. 

If the student has not demonstrated anticipated improvement given 
adequate time, the building team may continue to collect data and refine the 
intervention plan or may determine other avenues of support are worthy of 
pursuit. 

If the Building Team eventually determines the root cause of the student’s 
difficulties is a developmental mismatch between the student and his or her 
chronological grade placement, the Building Team may submit a request to 
retain a student. (ENL students will not be retained on the basis of their 
language deficiency.  Decisions regarding promotion/retention of special 
education students will be made by a case conference committee and shall 
not be based on the existence of a disability alone.) 



9. 

a. 

Internal requests to retain must be submitted to the Instructional 
Leadership Department prior to January 31st of the year preceding the 
possible repeated grade.  The request must be accompanied with: 

b. 

an explanation of the additional factors to support this 
recommendation, including the hypothesized root cause of the 
student’s difficulty and the specific data used in the determination; 

c. 

the interventions, accommodations, and/or modifications align to 
the root cause when implemented and what resulted; and 

10. 

a proposal of how retention will address the root cause in a way 
promotion cannot. 

11. 

A member of the Instructional Leadership team will conduct a classroom 
visit during the month of February to learn more about what is being done 
in providing an instructional match for the student’s needs and will 
participate in a meeting with the building team. 

12. 

In May of the year preceding the possible retention, requests for the 
retention of students will be approved or denied by the Instructional 
Leadership Department. 

13. 

In instances where a student is retained, a conference shall be held by the 
principal with the student’s parent/guardian to discuss the retention plan. 

 

Principals will discuss with Instructional Leadership instances of parental 
request for retention which occur with inadequate time to execute this 
process. 

When a student is achieving significantly below ability and/or grade level, the teacher or 
parent(s)/guardian may initiate retention procedures.  The following steps are to be 
completed (the time guidelines do not apply to late enrollees): 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS IN GRADES K-8 

 

 1) The teacher/parent or guardian fills out and completes an Academic 
Interventions Form.  

 2) The teacher/parent or guardian schedules a meeting with the principal to 
discuss the student's progress and to consider recommendations for 
additional academic interventions to meet the student’s individual needs.  

 
 3) The teacher and the parent(s)/guardian meet to discuss reasons for 

academic concern, and to agree upon specific interventions to remediate 
deficiencies.   

 
 4) The teacher, principal, and other appropriate persons are to review all 

available information and make a tentative recommendation concerning 
promotion/retention. This step is to be completed by May 1st. 



 5) A meeting with the parent(s)/guardian(s) and appropriate Elkhart 
Community Schools personnel shall be held to discuss the student's 
placement for the forthcoming year.  This discussion shall include available 
staff input, the student's ability, ISTEP+ test results, NWEA test results, 
grades, attendance, classroom performance, participation in required skill 
enhancement programs, and a review of the academic interventions that 
have been utilized. 

 
 6) For a student not receiving special education services, advancement to the 

next grade level will occur only upon the approval of the building principal.  
The principal shall make the final decision regarding grade placement for 
the forthcoming year in accordance with Board Policy IKE. Decisions 
regarding promotion/retention of special education students will be made 
by a case conference committee.   

 
 
March 23, 2004

 
 
 

September 26, 2017 

 











































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

REVISION 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  September 26, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of two consent agreements regarding unpaid 

time. 

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2017-18 school year: 

 

Sherri Holston   Feeser/Grade 4 

 

 

c. Rescind Personal Leave – We recommend rescinding a personal leave for the following employee: 

 

Steven McGrath  West Side/Math 

 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employee: 

 
Darci Koch   Roosevelt/Food Service 

Began: 10/11/04  Resign:  9/7/17 

 

Donisha McBride  Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 12/9/14   Resign:  9/12/17 

 

Shawanie Riley  Bristol & Feeser/Food Service 

Began: 10/ 1/12  Resign:  9/15/17 

 

Mariana Villalobos  Roosevelt/Paraprofessional 

   Began:  6/ 3/14   Resign:  9/29/17 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

  
 

b. Termination – We report the termination for the following classified employees: 

 

  Antoine Fowler  Daly/Food Service 

   Began:   8/15/14  End:  9/20/17 

       Board Policy: 3139.01s 

 

Abigail Paar   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began:  9/12/16  End:  8/22/17 

     Board Policy: 3139.01s 

 

 

c. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees: 

 

 

Miranda Austin  Cleveland/Food Service 

Began:  5/1/17   PE:  9/15/17 

 

Nicole Harris   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  4/21/17   PE:  9/1/17 

 

 

d. Unpaid Leave – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employee: 

 

Sabrina Dempsey  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  8/22/17   End: 11/21/17  

   

 

e. Medical Leave - We recommend an unpaid medical leave for the following employee: 

 

Lanasha Taylor  Central & Roosevelt/Food Service 

Began:   9/11/17  End:  1/8/18 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  September 26, 2017 

 

Addendum to Personnel report 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective September 25, 2017: 

 

 

Nicole Serge-Nemes  Beardsley/Assistant Principal 

 
 


	Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session September 12 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting September 12 2017
	Minutes - Work Session September 19 2017
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - Hawthorne
	Gift Acceptance - Memorial
	Gift Acceptance - West Side
	Balance Sheet - August
	Memo Business Office 2018 Budget
	2018 Budget Timeline
	Budget Form 1 - Expenses by Fund
	Budget Form 2 - Misc Revenue
	Budget Form 3
	Budget Form 4B - all funds
	Newspaper Notices for CPF and Bus Replacement Plans
	Recommendation for Architect Design
	ECS - Cripe Design Firm Profile
	ECS - JPR Firm Profile
	ECS - Primary Engineer Firm Profile
	ECS - Proposed Project Design Team
	ECS - TMP Firm Profile
	August 2017 Medical Plan Experience Recap
	Common School Fund Loan Memo
	Common School Technology Application
	Fundraisers
	Board Policy 3121ACS
	PERSONAL BACKGROUND CHECKS AND MANDATORY
	REPORTING OF CONVICTIONS AND ARRESTS

	Administrative Regulation IKE
	ETHOS Agreement
	Conflict of Interest - McGrath
	Grants
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leave Confirmation - Perkins
	Personnel Report - Revised
	Personnel Report - Addendum

